
M. Pearson 
CLERK TO THE AUTHORITY

To: The Members of the Hearing Panel 
(Standards Committee)

(see below)

SERVICE HEADQUARTERS
THE KNOWLE
CLYST ST GEORGE
EXETER
DEVON
EX3 0NW

Your ref : Date : 14 November 2019 Telephone : 01392 872200
Our ref : DSFRA/MP/SY Please ask for : Steve Yates Fax : 01392 872300

Website : www.dsfire.gov.uk Email : syates@dsfire.gov.uk Direct Telephone : 01392 872329

HEARING PANEL (STANDARDS COMMITTEE)
(Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority)

Friday, 22 November, 2019

A meeting of the Hearing Panel (Standards Committee) will be held on the above date, 
commencing at 2.00 pm in Committee Room B, Somerset House, Service 
Headquarters, Exeter to consider the following matters.

M. Pearson 
Clerk to the Authority

A G E N D A

PLEASE REFER TO THE NOTES AT THE END OF THE AGENDA LISTING SHEETS

1 Election of Chair 
To elect a Member of the Panel to preside at the hearing.

2 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
RECOMMENDATION that, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in the following Paragraph(s) of  Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) to the Act: 

 Paragraph 1 (information relating to an individual); and

 Paragraph 2 (information likely to reveal the identity of an individual).

3 Hearing following Investigation - Subject Member X (Pages 1 - 18)
Report of the Director of Governance & Digital Services (HP/19/1) attached.



MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO SIGN THE ATTENDANCE REGISTER

Membership:-

Councillors Drean, Prowse, Redman, Thomas and Way



NOTES

1. Access to Information
Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or lists of background papers relating to any item on this 
agenda should contact the person listed in the “Please ask for” section at the top of this agenda. 

2. Reporting of Meetings
Any person attending a meeting may report (film, photograph or make an audio recording) on any part of the 
meeting which is open to the public – unless there is good reason not to do so, as directed by the Chair - 
and use any communication method, including the internet and social media (Facebook, Twitter etc.), to 
publish, post or otherwise share the report. The Authority accepts no liability for the content or accuracy of 
any such report, which should not be construed as representing the official, Authority record of the meeting.  
Similarly, any views expressed in such reports should not be interpreted as representing the views of the 
Authority.
Flash photography is not permitted and any filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible from a single 
fixed position without the use of any additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the 
meeting and having regard also to the wishes of any member of the public present who may not wish to be 
filmed.  As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the 
Democratic Services Officer in attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is happening.

3. Declarations of Interests at meetings (Authority Members only)
If you are present at a meeting and you are aware that you have either a disclosable pecuniary interest, 
personal interest or non-registerable interest in any matter being considered or to be considered at the 
meeting then, unless you have a current and relevant dispensation in relation to the matter, you must:

(i) disclose at that meeting, by no later than commencement of consideration of the item in which you 
have the interest or, if later, the time at which the interest becomes apparent to you, the existence 
of and – for anything other than a “sensitive” interest – the nature of that interest; and then 

(ii) withdraw from the room or chamber during consideration of the item in which you have the relevant 
interest.

If the interest is sensitive (as agreed with the Monitoring Officer), you need not disclose the nature of the 
interest but merely that you have an interest of a sensitive nature.  You must still follow (i) and (ii) above.
Where a dispensation has been granted to you either by the Authority or its Monitoring Officer in relation to 
any relevant interest, then you must act in accordance with any terms and conditions associated with that 
dispensation.
Where you declare at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary or personal interest that you have not previously 
included in your Register of Interests then you must, within 28 days of the date of the meeting at which the 
declaration was made, ensure that your Register is updated to include details of the interest so declared.

4. Part 2 Reports
Members are reminded that any Part 2 reports as circulated with the agenda for this meeting contain 
exempt information and should therefore be treated accordingly. They should not be disclosed or passed on 
to any other person(s).  Members are also reminded of the need to dispose of such reports carefully and are 
therefore invited to return them to the Committee Secretary at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.

5. Substitute Members (Committee Meetings only)
Members are reminded that, in accordance with Standing Order 37, the Clerk (or his representative) must 
be advised of any substitution prior to the start of the meeting.  Members are also reminded that 
substitutions are not permitted for full Authority meetings.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 1

Agenda Item 3
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



HEARING PROCEDURES

Prior to the Hearing (Pre-hearing process)

1. Before the cycle of pre-meetings takes place, consideration needs to be given as to 
whether the hearing should be held in public or private.  The views of the Subject 
Member can be considered as part of this process but the decision whether to hold a 
private hearing should be based on the exceptions provided by Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972.

2. The Subject Member is required to set out, prior to the hearing, which of the facts s/he 
disagrees with and why.  If the Subject Member is intending to introduce new evidence at 
the hearing they are required to set out what the evidence is and why they are 
introducing it now and why it was not introduced during the investigation.  The 
Investigator should be given the opportunity to comment on new evidence prior to the 
hearing.  If this is not done and the new evidence goes to the heart of a finding of fact the 
Investigator would be allowed to ask the Hearing Panel to adjourn the hearing until the 
new evidence can be properly investigated.

3. A copy of the report that is prepared for the hearing is sent to the Subject Member, the 
Members of the Hearing Panel, the Independent Person and the person who is clerking 
the meeting.  The complainant does not automatically receive a copy of the report, and is 
not automatically invited to the meeting, or called as a witness, but they can be sent a 
copy of the report prepared for the Hearing Panel.  

4. The Hearing Panel may wish to undertake a pre-hearing process to:

 Identify if the Subject Member is to be represented; 

 Identify if the Subject Member disagrees with any of the findings, and if so why;

 Identify if the Subject Member wishes to introduce new evidence, and if so why;

 If the Subject Member is to introduce new evidence, identify if the Investigator has 
been given an opportunity to consider this;

 Identify if any witnesses are to be called and if so why;

 Decide if there are any parts of the hearing that should be held in private.

5. The pre-hearing process can be carried out in writing with Panel Members after asking 
the Investigating Officer to provide a final report and asking the Subject Member what 
facts they object to, if they are to introduce new evidence and if they wish to call any 
witnesses.  Note:  One character witness would be allowed.  

6. The pre-hearing process is a useful time for the Members of the Hearing Panel to focus 
on the facts of the matter and to consider what facts are clearly established facts (even if 
the Subject Member may disagree with them) and what are the facts that may need to be 
further established.  

7. In considering the facts the Hearing Panel is required to make an objective decision on 
the balance of probabilities; that is would a reasonable person, in possession of all of the 
facts, consider it more likely than not when looking at the facts objectively that the Code 
had been breached.

Page 5



8. The Hearing Panel should also consider, if a request to bring witnesses is made, what 
value each witness will bring to the hearing.  Witnesses are not required to give evidence 
under oath and therefore the Panel must be satisfied that each witness can provide 
indisputable evidence relating to the disputed facts.  In this respect, there are good 
grounds for asking that written witness statements be provided for the pre-hearing.  A 
character witness is allowed.  

9. Guidance issued by the former Standards Board for England set out that; the Hearing 
Panel should only allow the relevant parties to raise new disagreements over factual 
matters at the hearing in exceptional circumstances, such as new evidence becoming 
available that was unavailable before.  The Hearing Panel needs to make it clear to the 
Subject Member that unless they comply with the established procedure it may rule that it 
will not allow new evidence to be presented at the hearing.  

10. The Hearing Panel should ensure that, once the hearing commences, no doubts can be 
cast upon the integrity of the hearing by ensuring that there are no conflicts arising from 
those attending the hearing and the pre-hearing process is a useful step to resolve any 
conflicts there may be.  

The hearing

11. The hearing is a formal meeting of the Authority but it is not a court of law and it does not 
hear evidence under oath.  Facts at the hearing are decided on the balance of 
probabilities and not beyond reasonable doubt. 

12. The Subject Member can ask to be represented at the hearing.

13. The Subject Member should be allowed to present to the hearing in a manner in which 
they wish.  If witnesses are to attend it is for the Subject Member to ensure they are at 
the venue at the right time.  If the hearing is held in closed session witnesses will only be 
allowed into the hearing to give their evidence. 
 

14.  The procedure at the hearing should be;

 The Hearing Panel should deal with preliminary issues such as housing keeping 
etc.

 The Hearing Panel then consider whether there are any significant disagreements 
with the facts and the breaches of the Code in the investigation report;

 If there is no disagreement the hearing panel can move onto the next stage of the 
hearing;

 If there is disagreement the Investigator should be invited to make 
representations to support the facts in their report which has lead to the 
consideration that the Code has been breached.  The Investigator may, with the 
Panel’s approval call witnesses to give evidence.

 The Subject Member may be given the opportunity to challenge any evidence put 
forwards by a witness called by the Investigator. This may be done directly, or 
with questions submitted via the Chair;

 The Subject Member should then have the opportunity to make representations 
on the Investigation report to support their version of the facts, set out why this is 
not a breach of the Code and with the Panel’s approval call witnesses to give 
evidence;

 The Investigator may be given the opportunity to challenge any evidence put 
forwards by a witness called by the Subject Member. This can be done directly, or 
via the Chair;

Page 6



 At any point in the proceedings the Panel may question any of the people 
involved or any witnesses;

 If the Subject Member disagrees with any facts and breaches found and/or 
provides new evidence at the hearing without having given prior notice of the 
disagreement and/or the new evidence, the Panel will need to determine whether:

o the Subject Member is invited to present on the disputed facts/breaches 
and/or present the new evidence and invite the Investigator to respond; or 

o whether to postpone the hearing to allow the disputed facts to be further 
assessed and/or the new evidence to be investigated.

15. At the end of the presentations both the Subject Member and Investigator will be asked 
to leave the room to enable the Panel to consider the facts in private.  

16. The Panel needs to first consider which of the facts presented it feels are proven (on the 
balance of probabilities) and whether, based on these facts, the Subject Member 
breached the Code of Conduct.  In reaching this decision, the Panel must seek and take 
account of the views of the Independent Person.

17. If the Panel considers that, based on the facts and following consultation with the 
Independent Person, the Subject Member has not breached the Code the panel can then 
move on to consider if it may wish to make any recommendations to the Authority, such 
as further training for all Members.  

18. If the Panel considers, based on the facts and following consultation with the 
Independent Person, that the Subject Member has breached the Code;

 The Panel should reconvene and set out to those present the facts it considers 
are found and the breaches of the Code that have arisen from these facts. 

 The Panel should consider any representations from the Investigator as to 
whether sanctions should be imposed and if so what form the sanctions should 
take.  The Panel may question the Investigator and seek other advice (e.g. from 
the Monitoring Officer) on the question of sanctions.  The type of advice sought 
could include (but is not limited to) the range of sanctions available to the Panel;

 The Subject Member should be offered the opportunity to make a submission in 
mitigation.

 The Panel will deliberate in private on whether to impose sanctions, and if so 
what the sanctions should be;

 The Panel must also seek and take account of the views of the Independent 
Person on whether any sanction(s) should be imposed and if so what the 
sanction(s) should be;

 The Chair of the panel will then announce the Panel’s decision on sanctions.

19. The decision of the Panel will be made verbally on the day.  A written Decision Notice will 
be produced as soon as practical after the hearing.  The Decision Notice is will be 
published on the Authority’s website.  The Decision Notice will specify the breach(es) of 
the Code, the facts upon which the breach(es) was/were established (subject to no 
confidential information being disclosed) and any sanctions imposed.  The Decision 
Notice will also record the views of the Independent Person on these matters.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Hearing following Investigation - Subject Member X
	Appendix A to report HP/19/1 - Pre-hearing and Hearing Process
	Appendix B to report HP/19/1 - Investigating Officer's Final Report


